
 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

 
Agenda 

 
The July 2014 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District will be 
held on Thursday, July 17, 2014 at 6:00 pm at the Central Library (Steele Memorial) 
101 E. Church St. Elmira, NY 14901  The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are 
unable to attend, please inform Mr. Roberts (271-9625), Mrs. Santulli (733-8607), or Mr. Shaw 
(733-8611).   
 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2014-36) and  
4.  Treasurer’s report  
 a)  Financial report (document #2014-37) 
 b)  Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document #2014-38) 
5. Steele Memorial Library/Central Library 
      a) Public expression 
      b) Board Discussion 
6.  Correspondence  
7.  President’s report 

CONSENT ITEM Approval of the CCLD Whistleblower Policy (see attached) 
8.  Director’s Report: (Appendix A)  
9.  Committee reports:   

a)  Executive Committee (Roberts)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2014-39) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Cook) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2014-40) 
c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Muldoon) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting  (document #2014-41) 
d) Personnel Committee (Cady)  
CONSENT ITEM Approval of Personnel Actions (Appendix B) 

10.  Old business  
11.  New business  
12.  Period for public expression  
13.  Adjournment  

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/�


(Minutes of the JUNE 2014 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board of Trustees.  
Document #2014-36) 
 
Minutes of the June 2014 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board of Trustees. 
The meeting was held on Thursday, June 19th, 2014 at the Van Etten Library, 83 Main Street, Van 
Etten, New York. President Richard Roberts called the meeting to order at 6:04pm. Present were Rita 
Dery, Ann Hayes, John Savash, Bonnie Chollet, Michael Muldoon, Marge Kappanadze, Juan Jones, 
Ann Cady, Rachel Dworkin, and James Hare. Excused: Georgia Reynolds, Sue Cook, Tim Blandford 
and Jessica Roberts.  
 
President Roberts requested that in the future, board members review the board packet and if there 
are any questions, to contact the Administration and get answers prior to the board meeting. This will 
expedite the time spent at the board meeting itself.  
 
Mr. Roberts also stated that he has met with the CCLD Attorney and was informed that the New 
York State rules regarding a quorum of the board is different than what is stated in the CCLD By-
Laws.  The rule is that the quorum is based on the number of seats – whether or not they are vacant at 
the time.  The CCLD By-Laws need to be changed to reflect this rule. This change will be added to 
the Agenda for the next meeting. President Roberts also stated that in the future all votes for 
resolutions that are being considered need to reflect the number of Yes and No votes and the number 
of abstentions. 
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the May 2014 meeting (Document #2014-30) were presented for board 
review.  The minutes were approved by unanimous consent.   
 
Financial  Report. The May 31st, 2014 Financial Report (Document #2014-31) was presented for 
board review. By unanimous consent, the May Financial Report was approved as distributed and will 
be filed for audit. 
 
Report of Unpaid Bills. (Document #2014-32). Ms. Cook noted that one invoice needs to be added 
to the list – as approved by the Buildings & Grounds Committee – Foor & Associates $293.73. By 
unanimous consent, the board authorizes the payment of the unpaid bills dated 5/29/14 General Fund 
– 271.32; the 6/4/14 General Fund – 16,823.21 and Grant Fund $8,455.41; the unpaid bills dated 
6/11/14 General Fund - $67,352.19 as distributed and with the additional invoice for Foor & 
Associates.   
 
Correspondence. Several Thank You notes were received – from the Home Schoolers who hae 
attended CCLD events, the EOP Headstart for the Bookmobile, from the YWCA UPK and pre-
schoolers and from Diven School for the Youth Services staff.  Two notices of retirement were 
received – P. Rogan, Librarian 2 is retiring July 5th and D. Patchett, Principal Library Clerk is retiring 
July 31st.  President Roberts reported receiving a letter from Jim Arey, Director of the Elmira-
Chemung Transportation Council thanking CCLD for the use of two of our libraries to hold their 
visioning workshops in May.  
 
President’s Report.  CONSENT ITEM Appointing a Secretary to the Board of Trustees. 
RESOLVED by Mr. Hare, seconded by Ms. Dery to appoint Rachel Dworkin as the Secretary for the 
CCLD Board of Trustees. VOTE: 10 Yes. 1 Abstention.  
 
 
Director’s Report.   Mr. Shaw stated that most of the items in his report were included in the board 
packet.  He discussed the following: 



• CCLD Issues. The Whistleblower policy will be distributed to the board and will be on the 
Agenda for the July meeting of the board for discussion and approval. The change of staff at 
Big Flats and the AV Department at the Central Library has been a resounding success.  The 
numbers of participants at  Big Flats Library programs has increased dramatically since G. 
Peel's arrival and Kudos to B. Harris for his purchasing of movies and CDs – for the last 3 
months there have been exceptional numbers of circs for music CDs.  

• STLS Issues. Freegal – the free downloadable music software has gone live.  
• Budget & Finance. CCLD has received a check from the Friends of CCLD in the amount of 

$2,604 to pay half of the cost of the Mango database. Marketing of this program has been 
increased. The Friends of CCLD has also donated $2,000 toward the Summer Concert Series 
being held at the Central Library. There will be 5 concerts this year due to M. Barrett’s 
application to the Arts Council of the Southern Finger Lakes who donated an additional $430 
for the concerts. Kudos to K. Jones, the Bookmobile Driver, who due to her persistence was 
able to receive a rebate check from Cummins Northeast in the amount of $2,650 for repairs 
made to the generator in 2013. This will be earmarked for future Bookmobile repairs.  

• Worker’s Comp. The representative for our area has inspected all CCLD buildings with 
regard to issues during the initial meeting and all buildings have passed their inspection.  

• Items included in board packet. Background information regarding a Digital Magazine 
Subscription (with the plan to enter into a consortia agreement and offer the Zinio magazine 
database starting June of 2015); the District-wide calendar of events for June 2014; 
Circulation stats for the first 5 months of 2014; a monthly report from the Office of the 
Director with major accomplishments and meetings/programs attended during the month; the 
Director’s “trip report” to the Cuba Circulating Library Association; and the June 2014 report 
from Department Heads on activities for their department.  

Board members commented that they like receiving these new reports and appreciate the staff time it 
takes to submit them.  
 
At the request of the Youth Services staff, a revision to the CCLD Code of Conduct has been 
requested to cover minors under the age of 9 who use the library.  The revision states that a 
responsible caregiver must accompany the children and be in control of the child’s behavior while 
using the library.  Ms. Chollet moved, seconded by Ms. Hayes to add #12 (the safety of minors) to 
the Chemung County Library District Code of Conduct.  VOTE: Approved unanimously.  A copy of 
the Code of Conduct will be attached to the original of these minutes.  

 
Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to the board 
(Document #2014-33). Bed bug training took place during the month and the library is requesting a 
quote on a canine inspection of the Central Library for the insects.  
  
Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting was 
distributed in writing to the board (Document #2014-34). A timeline for the adoption of the 2015 
CCLD budget was included in the board packet.  
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee meeting was 
distributed in writing to the board (Document #2014-35).  
   2013 Projects. Central Library – no date has been given for the cleaning of the HVAC unit. It has 
been determined that closure of the building may not be necessary. The Exterior Masonry Restoration 
project is on hold awaiting paperwork (proof of worker’s comp insurance) from BR Restoration. 
Horseheads Library – Foor & Associates has received 3 bids and recommends accepting the formal 
bid of Spencer Paving. This will be tabled until the Library District has reviewed the bids. West 
Elmira/Big Flats Libraries. These projects have been closed out with New York State.  



   The 2014 grant request for the elevator replacement has been awarded.  Mr. Jones moved, seconded 
by Mr. Muldoon to hire Foor & Associates to prepare the sealed bids/specs for the elevator project.  
VOTE: Approved Unanimously.  
   Regarding the 2015 projects, Mr. Frank has submitted both the boiler project and the public 
restroom projects at the Central Library to the Southern Tier Library System.  
 
Interior Horseheads Library Project.  The Horseheads Foundation, while paying for the 
carpeting/painting project has determined that they cannot sign the contracts due to the fact that they 
do not own the building.  The Foundation will pay the Project Manager.  The Committee has many 
questions regarding this project that need to be answered prior to the approval of any contracts.  
 
Mr. Shaw reported that NYSERDA has received our request for an energy audit of the Central 
Library. Taitum Energy has been sent the needed energy bills to start the process.  
 
AGAIN – this Committee is in need of new board members. The meeting date will be changed to the 
first Wednesday of each month at 5:00 pm and the new day and time will start in July.  
 
Personnel Committee. Ms. Cady stated that the Committee met with Director Ron Shaw and went 
over his review and answered questions.  She feels that the relationship between the board and its 
Director is moving in the right direction. The Committee also discussed the contract between CCLD 
and its Administrative Assistant. Ms. Cady apologized for mistakes found in Ms. Santulli’s contract 
and stated that compensation for her new duties as Health Care Administrator were not included in 
the contract.  
 
CONSENT ITEM For transparency reasons, Mr. Shaw is requesting approval of Personnel Actions as 
specified in the Handbook for Library Trustees of New York State, 2010 Edition. RESOLVED by 
Mr. Hare, seconded by Ms. Cady that upon the recommendation of the Library District Director, the 
Board of Trustees approves the list of personnel actions with the exception of pre-approval of a 
promotional Senior Library Clerk position as submitted to the board in writing. Motion Carried. A 
copy of this list will be included with the original of these minutes.  
 
Old Business.  Mr. Hare stated that at the May meeting the Board’s position as an “Advisory” Board 
to the Director was discussed.  This needs to be understood and addressed and corrected if necessary.  
 
The issue of the Steele Memorial Library being referred to as the Central Library will be placed on 
the Agenda for the July meeting. The board will give direction on any re-naming of the “street” 
entrance to the building.  
 
It was stated that liaisons to the different groups (i.e. Friends & Foundations) need to give reports at 
the board meetings to keep board members informed on activities, etc.  
 
President Roberts stated that this is Mr. Savash’s last meeting on the board and that Ms. Dery will be 
leaving at the end of July.  He thanked both of them for their service on the board. Both have done a 
great job in their position as trustee.  
 
New Business. Mr. Savash read a statement prior to his leaving the board.  He thanked Mr. Shaw, 
Ms. Santulli, the board and the Buildings & Grounds Committee for their assistance during his years 
on the board.  His accomplishments included the 5 year Capital Plan and the 3 year Multi-Year 
Budget.  He hopes that, in the future, the board will focus on issues that are really important. 
 



Ms. Cady stated that there needs to be a formalized process on how the board conducts business. She 
passed out written recommendations to include staff and trustee continuing education, evaluation of 
the Board, and an annual meeting with various Friends and Foundation groups. This can be discussed 
at the next meeting.  
 
Mr. Jones & Mr. Hare have volunteered to serve on a Committee (along with other interested board 
members) to conduct an analysis and to provide a 3 year projection for the status of the opening and 
closure of buildings in the Library District. Once the analysis is complete, a public press release will 
be written and dispersed to local media.  
 
Other items discussed were the need to do more strategic planning on a regular basis; the possibility 
of a board retreat that will include members of the Friends groups and Foundation members; and an 
“Audit Committee” of which Mr. Savash stated that he would be willing to serve on as a Community 
member.  
 
Ms. Kappanadze moved, seconded by Ms. Chollet to move into Executive Session to discuss contract 
negotiations.  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Mr. Hare to come out of Executive Session.  
 
 
Public Expression.  None 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:28pm. The next regular meeting of the board will be held on 
Thursday, July 17th, 2014 at 6:00pm at the Central Library, 101 East Church Street, Elmira, New 
York.  

















 
Document #2014-39 
 
Report of the July 2nd, 2014 meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District:   
 
A meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung County Library District was held on 
Wednesday, July 2nd, 2014.  Attending the meeting were Richard Roberts, Sue Cook, Marge 
Kappanadze, Georgia Reynolds; and  Joan Santulli, CCLD management.  The meeting 
opened at 6:00pm.   
 
Ms. Santulli presented the Unpaid Bills Detail dated 7/2/14 for the General Fund in the 
amount of $21,059.69 and the Grant Fund - $1,299. Ms. Reynolds moved, seconded by Ms. 
Cook to pay the bills as listed. Motion Carried.   
 
Ms. Santulli noted that the Library District has received notification from the Southern Tier 
Library System that our application for 2015 State Construction funding has been approved. 
Projects approved include both the Boiler Replacement and Public Restroom Restoration at 
the Central Library. Total cost of the projects is $131,400 of which $92,333 will be paid for 
with State Construction funding. The balance will be paid with CCLD Restricted funds that 
have been set aside for this purpose.  
 
The draft of the Form 990 submitted by the auditor was given to Treasurer Sue Cook for her 
review.  The 990 will need to be approved by the board at its next meeting.  
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:24pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District will be held on Wednesday, August 6th, 2014 at 6pm in 
the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library.   
 



Document #2014-40 
 
Report of the July 9th, 2014 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District:   
 
A meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the Chemung County Library District was 
held on Wednesday, July 9th, 2014.  Attending the meeting were CCLD board members Sue 
Cook, Georgia Reynolds and Marge Kappanadze and Community Member Robin Fitzgerald. 
Also attending were Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration.  The meeting opened at 
8:02am. 
 
Ms. Santulli presented the June 30th, 2014 Financial Report to the Committee. Expenditures for 
the year are right on target. The Report will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its 
consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the 7/9/14 Unpaid Bills Detail for the General Fund bills totaling 
$28,967.76. The Unpaid Bills Detail will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its 
consideration.   
 
Mr. Shaw and Ms. Santulli submitted the first draft of the proposed 2015 CCLD Budget to the 
Committee. The first draft shows an increase in the tax revenues of 1.5%.  The Committee 
reviewed the budget in detail. Ms. Santulli will review each line item of the budget prior to 
submission of a second draft to the Committee in August to determine if any errors were made in 
the first draft.  The budget will then be submitted to the full board at their August meeting for 
review and approval. The Committee was happy that the percentage fell below the 2% tax cap 
requirement.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:54am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, August 13th, 2014 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele 
Memorial Library.   



Document #2014-41 
 
Report of the July 2nd, 2014 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung County 
Library District 
 
A meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung County Library District was held on 
Wednesday, July 2nd, 2014.  The meeting opened at 5:00pm.Present were Mr. Muldoon, Ms. Dery and Mr. 
Hare. Also attending was Joan Santulli, CCLD Management.  The meeting opened at 3:00pm.    
 
The Committee reviewed bids for the Horseheads Library Parking Lot project. Bids were as follows: Spencer 
Paving Company - $22,928; Streeter Construction - $23,850; and Wenzel Contractors - $24,500.  Mr. 
Muldoon reviewed the scope of the project and determined all were the same.  Mr. Butcher of Foor & 
Associates recommended accepting the low bid of Spencer Paving.  The Committee concurred and will send 
this to the full board for review and acceptance.  
 
The Horseheads Library interior project (painting/carpet replacement) still has many unanswered questions. 
The Committee will request that Sue Oliver, the Project Manager hired by the Horseheads Foundation meet 
with us on Wednesday, July 9th at 5pm to discuss the project. At that time it is hoped that the Committee will 
be able to review bids for the project.  
 
Regarding the Elevator Replacement project at the Central Library, the Committee will request that Mr. 
Butcher meet with them at the August meeting to give an update on the project.  
 
Ms. Santulli passed around a letter from the Director of the Southern Tier Library System which stated that 
both of the 2015 State Construction projects that were submitted have been approved. Those projects include 
the Boiler Replacement AND the Public Restroom restoration at the Central Library.  The total project costs 
are projected at $131,400 of which $92,333 will be funded by the State. The balance will come from 
Restricted Funds set aside for this purpose.  
 
A spreadsheet of the status of the State Construction Projects will be supplied to the Committee. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:38pm.  The next meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on 
Wednesday, July 9th, 2014 at 5pm in the Petrie Conference Room at the Steele Memorial Library. 
 
Report of the July 9th, 2014 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung County 
Library District. Committee members present were Mike Muldoon, Jim Hare and Rita Dery. Visiting the 
Committee was Ann Hayes.  Also present Sue Oliver, Project Manager for the Horseheads Interior project and 
Ron Shaw and Joan Santulli, CCLD Management.  The meeting opened at 5:30pm. 
 
Committee members reviewed the bids and timeline for the Painting/Carpeting project at the Horseheads 
Library. All bids included prevailing wages where necessary and were as follows: 
 Carpeting replacement – Parkway Flooring $32,700; Cutlers $21,000 and Overpeck & Son Flooring  

$14,500. Ms. Oliver recommends accepting the low bid from Overpeck. 
 
Painting – R.A. Furstoss Contracting $10,567; Cook Painting $6,429 and Pendleton’s Painting $5,120.  
Ms. Oliver recommends accepting the low bid from Pendletons.  
 
Labor/Carpentry (for moving shelving and relocating cabinets) – Eagle Eye Builders $7,250 and B&B 
Remodeling $1,300. Ms. Oliver expressed some concerns about the low bidder, including their follow-
up on the project; a single person operation (the job would require 2 people) and whether or not the 
business has “commercial insurance”. She has spoken to Eagle Eye who is willing to negotiate his bid 
down to between $3,200 and$3,500.  She will speak to him about charging the Library District for 
Time & Materials as opposed to a set dollar amount.  The project cost has a contingency line included 
which would take care of the extra amount for the Labor/Carpentry. She will submit a revised quote to 
CCLD prior to next week’s board meeting and recommends accepting Eagle Eye Builders as the 
contractor for this portion of the project.  



Ms. Oliver then reviewed the additional Expenses for the project for which no competitive quotes 
were sought.  The estimated project total is $38,884 well below the amount designated by the 
Horseheads Foundation for payment for the project.  
 

Committee members accepted Ms. Oliver’s recommendations of which contractors should be awarded the 
bids. This matter will be forwarded to the full board to be reviewed and approved at its July meeting.  
 
Ms. Oliver suggested that the Horseheads Parking Lot project be completed at the same time that the library is 
closed for the interior renovation project. The projected closure for the Horseheads Library would be from 
August 18, 2014 through September 26, 2014.   
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:40pm.  The next meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on 
Wednesday, August 6th, 2014 at 5pm in the Petrie Conference Room at the Steele Memorial Library. 
 



Chemung County Library District 
Whistleblower Policy 

Adopted: 
 

1 
 

Chemung County Library District requires directors, officers and employees to observe high 
standards of business and personal ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities. As 
employees and representatives of the Chemung County Library District, we must practice 
honesty and integrity in fulfilling our responsibilities and comply with all applicable laws and 
regulations. A copy of this policy shall be distributed to all directors, officers, employees, and to 
volunteers who provide substantial services to the corporation. 
 
Reporting Responsibility 
It is the responsibility of all directors, officers and employees to report ethics violations or 
suspected violations in accordance with this Whistleblower Policy.  
 
No Retaliation 
No director, officer or employee who in good faith reports an ethics violation shall suffer 
harassment, retaliation or adverse employment consequence. An employee who retaliates against 
someone who has reported a violation in good faith is subject to discipline up to and including 
termination of employment. This Whistleblower Policy is intended to encourage and enable 
employees and others to raise serious concerns within Chemung County Library District prior to 
seeking resolution outside Chemung County Library District.  
 
Reporting Violations 
Chemung County Library District has an open door policy and suggests that employees share 
their questions, concerns, suggestions or complaints with someone who can address them 
properly. In most cases, an employee’s supervisor is in the best position to address an area of 
concern. However, if you are not comfortable speaking with your supervisor or you are not 
satisfied with your supervisor’s response, you are encouraged to speak with someone in the 
Human Resources Department or anyone in management whom you are comfortable in 
approaching. Supervisors and managers are required to report suspected ethics violations to the 
Chemung County Library District’s Compliance Officer, who has specific and exclusive 
responsibility to investigate all reported violations. For suspected fraud, or when you are not 
satisfied or uncomfortable with following Chemung County Library District’s open door policy, 
individuals should contact Chemung County Library District’s Compliance Officer directly.  
 
Compliance Officer 
The Chemung County Library DistrictCompliance Officer shall be responsible for investigating 
and resolving all reported complaints and allegations concerning violations and, at his/her 
discretion, shall advise the Director and/or the Board of Directors. The Compliance Officer has 
direct access to the Board of Directors and is required to report to the Board of Directors at least 
annually on compliance activity.  
 
Accounting and Auditing Matters 
The Board of Directorsshall address all reported concerns or complaints regarding corporate 
accounting practices, internal controls or auditing. The Compliance Officer shall immediately 
notify the Board of any such complaint and work with the Board until the matter is resolved.  
 



Chemung County Library District 
Whistleblower Policy 

Adopted: 
 

2 
 

Acting in Good Faith 
Anyone filing a complaint concerning a violation or suspected violation must be acting in good 
faith and have reasonable grounds for believing the information disclosed indicates a violation. 
Any allegations that prove not to be substantiated and which prove to have been made 
maliciously or knowingly to be false will be viewed as a serious disciplinary offense.  
 
Confidentiality 
Violations or suspected violations may be submitted on a confidential basis by the complainant 
or may be submitted anonymously. Reports of violations or suspected violations will be kept 
confidential to the extent possible, consistent with the need to conduct an adequate investigation.  
 
Handling of Reported Violations 
The Compliance Officer will notify the sender and acknowledge receipt of the reported violation 
or suspected violation within five business days. All reports will be promptly investigated and 
appropriate corrective action will be taken if warranted by the investigation.   
 
Compliance Officer: 
{Name} 
Chemung County Library District 
{Contact information} 
 
Chemung County Library District Management Staff 
{Name and Title} 
 
 
Policy Approved by the Chemung County Library District Board of Directors on {Date}. 
 



Office of the Director, CCLD 
 
Major accomplishments: Coordination with Chemung County Civil Service re: Librarian I, Library 
Assistant and Library Clerk positions. Wrote interview questions and scoring matrix for Librarian I 
interviews. Developed  transfer scenarios in agreement with Chris Corter, Owen Frank and Janet 
Ackerman. Continue work on review of July 2011 CCLD Staff plan to update manning roster, positions, 
job descriptions, supporting documentation, etc. Worked with Mr. Joe Ponzi and Mr. Michael Straight  
(NYSERDA) re: energy grant application, eligibility, programs and energy audit. Worked with Taitum 
Engineering, Ithaca NY re: conduct of energy audit @ Central. First meeting of CCLD Safety Committee 
involving CCLD Management and CSEA Reps. Completion of first draft of 2015 Budget. 
 
Site visits to CCLD branches- West Elmira, Horseheads, Big Flats.  
 
Other site visits- Dundee Library, Montour Falls Memorial Library, Watkins Glen Public Library, Odessa 
Library, Elmira High School, Ernie Davis Academy.  
 
Major meetings: Meeting with Emily M. Solometo, Education Grant Specialist, GST BOCES Grant 
Services; Gina Beirne, the Library Media Specialist for Elmira High School; Doris Metzger, CCLD Teen 
Services Coordinator for a proposal for the "Innovative Approaches to Literacy Program Grant." Meeting 
with Deana Haynes NYS Worker's Comp. Representative re: WC re-inspection of Central and branches. 
Meeting with Caroline Poppendeck re: HH Interior Renovation. Numerous separate meetings with Chris 
Corter, Owen Frank, Janet Ackerman to discuss future plans for programs, staffing, hiring, etc. 
Meeting with CSEA Executive Committee re: scheduling, safety committee; Mr. Conrad Wolan (Sayles 
and Evans) re: Board member roles and Education Law; Sara Lattin (Sen. Tom O'Mara's office) re: NYS 
Construction grants. Conversation with Jim Hare re: name change, audit concerns, election concerns, 
board roles. Monthly Management meeting. Directors Advisory Council (STLS) Meeting in Bath re: 
Standardization of Patron Library Cards & Checkout Limits, Bylaws for DAC, Member Services Consultant 
(New MLS Position at STLS), System Services Survey, Expiring DAC Terms, Freegal Music Service 
Promotions. Meeting with Chris Corter re: scheduling of librarians, desk schedules, and LH/Genealogy 
tasks and priorities. Pauline Emery re: Zinio magazine subscription pros/cons, cost, Southeast Steuben 
Campaign for a district, and other Director's issues.   
 
Major Personnel Issues: Approval of Promotional and New Hire opportunities at June Board Meeting. 
Presentation to Executive Committee re: promotional opportunity to Network Specialist I. Three 
confidential conversations under open door policy. Negotiations with Personnel Committee re: CCLD 
Management Contracts.  
 
Media Coverage: Interview by Tanja Rekhi (WENY) re: NYS Construction grants elevator project. 
Interview with Erika Brecher (WETM) re: NYS Construction grants elevator project. Interviewed by Katie 
Husband (Time Warner Cable News); Asha McKenzie (WENY); and WETM re: C-Span History Bus.  
 
Programs attended/observed: Met with Mr. Rich LaVere, LaVere Media re: program on Autism; 
Wednesday Evening Storytime- St. George Library, UT;  
 



Professional readings- The Leadership Secrets of Genghis Khan by John Man. "Confronting the Future: 
Strategic Visions for the 21st Century Public  Library" by Roger E. Levein, ALA Office for Information 
Technology; "Creating the Future: A 2020 Vision and Plan for Library Service in New York State" by NYS 
Board of Regents.  "American Libraries" May 2014;  
 
Professional courses attended/completed: Completion of " Customer Service Fundamentals" 1h 57m 
through Lynda.com (South Central Regional Library Council online training subscription). Completion of 
"Foundations of Video: Cameras and Shooting" 2h 58m through Lynda.com (South Central Regional 
Library Council online training subscription). Completion of "Foundations of Video: Cameras and 
Shooting" 2h 58m through Lynda.com (South Central Regional Library Council online training 
subscription). Completion of "Presentation Fundamentals" 1h 31m through Lynda.com (South Central 
Regional Library Council online training subscription). Bedbug training 
 
 
 

 



 

  

  

  

      

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 





 

  

  

  

      

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 





 

  

  

  

      

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 





Personnel Actions 

 
New Hires 
Librarian I- to fill position vacated by Phyllis Rogan 
 
Promotions  
Network Specialist I Request to fill with designated personnel (promotional opportunity) 
 
Appointments 

Raises as per CCLD/CSEA Contract 
Deb Brimmer Step 7 to Step 8 
 



Central Library July 2014 (June 12-July 9) Monthly Activity Reports 
 
Audio/Visual – Brian Harris 
 New AV titles are now posted on the Blog with a link from our website.  This has 
generated very favorable reactions from the public.  AV circulation has been setting record 
checkouts for the past 3 months.  I have found more shelving and will be trying to relieve more 
of the overcrowding in the Audiobooks.  I will also be discarding more music cd’s to make room 
for the very popular new music. 
 
 
Circulation- Chris Corter 
 I met with all part time pages to discuss procedures and gather information about how 
the department was operating.  Areas were identified for improved training to avoid errors.   
Bed bug training was completed by all Central staff. Those who could not attend in person 
viewed a video recording of Mr. Oliver’s presentation on June 16th.   All staff is now inspecting 
items for bugs as they handle them.   
 
Marketing – Michelle Barrett 
 Created a summer brochure for Youth, Teen, and Adult events (see attached).  The 
youth fliers were distributed to all children in the ECSD during their last week of school.  Mango 
Marketing- created a "Word of the Day & Foreign Fun Fact" to go out every day on Facebook & 
Twitter.  Also, created bookmarks to be given to several local travel agencies promoting the use 
of Mango through the library.  Our Instagram page is now up and running.  Follow us @ 
CHEMUNG_COUNTY_LIBRARIES.  I am going to start taking pictures of new materials about to 
hit the shelf to put on our Instagram, Twitter, & Facebook accounts.  Congratulations to our 
Staff FB Contest Winner, Emily Kinney. 
 
 
Social Media – Jennie Lewis 
Facebook - 33 new likes in June/ 70 posts 
Twitter - 4 new followers in June / 40 Posts 
Blog - 321 views / 6 posts in June (article written by Michael Kane about the chess challenge 
received the most direct views--12; the main page of the blog received 259 views). 
A new tumblr page for teens was started this month; Doris Jean Metzger (Teen Services) has 
been regularly sending content to Jennie Lewis for posting. 
Michelle Barrett (Marketing/PR) started an Instagram page for the district this month.  The 
page will be used to show behind the scenes shots of the library as well as to promote events 
by taking and posting photos during them. 
Other:   
Google+ - 32 followers total / 4 posts in June 
Flickr - Photos are posted to our Flickr account as they are added to Facebook. 
Awesome Box - is a Harvard Library Innovation Lab program that libraries can sign up for (free).  
Patrons put "awesome" items into a special drop box and the items are scanned into a web 
interface where they are listed for browsing.  Items are listed as recently awesome and most 



awesome.  This is a fun way for patrons to passively recommend books and other materials to 
each other--no form necessary, just put the item in the Awesome Box.  The box was deployed 
at Central Library on June 30th and a widget was added to the CCLD site. 
 
 
Adult Programming – Jennie Lewis 
 CCLD was chosen as one of 20 "Outside the Box" libraries and received $5000 worth of 
reusable materials for outdoor events.  Outside the Box is developed and funded by Redbox, 
and managed by OCLC in partnership with Project for Public Spaces.  The goal is to unite 
libraries with local groups in the community to plan outdoor events for the public, near the 
library.  Librarian Jennie Lewis spearheaded the effort and wrote the grant application.  Staff 
members Janet Ackerman, Michelle Barrett, Doris Jean Metzger, and Joan Santulli assisted by 
attended idea meetings with community partners and trainings associated with the program.  
Plans are underway for an outdoor movie event in Mark Twain Riverfront Park in September. 
 During the month of June we hosted several programs for adults, including:  Sarah C. 
Smith event (notable Elmiran--event arranged by librarian Phyllis Rogan), Hijinks and Home 
(Civil War program), and Bad Movie Night (Howard the Duck--event arranged by Jennie Lewis 
and Doris Jean Metzger).  Seven computer classes were taught (some by librarians Owen Frank 
and Jennie Lewis, others by outside instructors) in June.  On June 30th, genealogy volunteer 
John White taught photography for genealogists course in the tech lab (arranged by senior clerk 
Sherry Nichols). 
 
Reference/ Adult Services- Connie Ogilvie 
 The Adult Services Department answered 532 questions on the main desk and 234 
questions on the PC desk for the month of June.  Mondays are always busy after we have been 
closed for the weekend.  Our display this month was "I Love Golf, I Love Fishing, and I Love 
Baseball."  I am always amazed at the treasure trove of books in our stacks on so many varied 
subjects. The Mango Languages database marketing project has begun, I made a new Mango 
digital sign and Michelle Barrett/Marketing printed out Shelf-Talkers, small signs advertising 
Mango, for placement in the language, travel and audiobook sections.  Michelle Barrett has also 
created Mango Word of the Day on CCLD's Facebook account. 
 Whenever a new Reference book comes in on standing order, often the prior year is 
sent to non-fiction for circulating and the oldest copies are discarded.  This process has been 
giving me a chance to learn more about the Reference section, review standing orders, weed a 
bit, and assess information regarding this collection. 
 
LH/Genealogy – final report from Phyllis Rogan & Chris Corter 
 The Local History Department hosted 2 special programs this month. On June 12th, Joy 
Hoffman presented a local history program about Sarah C. Smith. Sarah was a woman who 
graduated from Elmira Academy, as it was known in the 1800's, taught at Diven School and in 
1880 became a missionary and teacher in Japan where she eventually opened the first school 
for girls. It is now a thriving school, high school and college and Sarah is still a revered person in 
Japan. Each year one of the pupils at the school becomes an exchange student in the USA. 
Although famous in Japan, Sarah is almost unknown in Chemung County. Joy Hoffman, who has 



researched Sarah, including going  to Japan to her school  enlightened a delighted group (about 
35) wearing a kimona that was presented to her by the school representatives and bringing 
with her this year’s exchange student who wore her school uniform.  
 On June 30th, CCLD volunteer, John White explained how modern day photography 
could benefit genealogists to save gravestones and other family records.  The enthusiastic 
group of 10 had many questions for John and all went away with new tips.    
 Indexing of the 1962 obituaries continues with the purpose of posting on our website. 
These bring in a lot of mail requests.  Other volunteers are working on 1888 as well. 
 
 

Board Report June-July Central Youth Dept. Activities  
submitted by Janet Ackerman 

For Youth Services Dept Head, Janet Ackerman 

• continues  working with Summer Cohesion and Summer Reading Loss Committee,  
which obtained a donation from United Way for the purchase of books and bags to use 
at the Cohesion site based on our Science theme. Plans are still under way to send staff 
to lead some Cohesion Summer Reading specials at the various sites.  Janet spoke on 
Cohesion training day to 100 Cohesion Rec teen leaders about the importance of 
summer reading and how the library will work with them for the Summer Reading Club 
goals 

• received and acknowledged the donation of 7 Osprey books for CCLD libraries donated 
by Mary Ann Perks. 

•  processed a donation of $50 for memorial books from the Kiwanis Club in memory of 
Joan Geldmacher.  

•  attended a webinar on Outside the Box for the use of our grant $ to host an outside the 
library event 

•  led the Youth meeting of CCLD staff to address the party at Eldridge Park and other 
events 

• Finished and exported to all other CCLD libraries the Kids Summer Reading Club page for 
online registration. 

• With help of Emma Howard, created Summer Reading Lists for Kids (3 different age 
levels) for distribution. 

For Youth Services Clerk, Emma Howard, 

• Attended a Webinar on Maker Spacers 
• Designed and distributed flyers to Elmira City Schools for Central’s Summer Reading 

Club plans 
• Met with the Youth Employment supervisor & arranged for a teen to work here in Youth 

Dept for the Summer, went over expectations, hours, etc.  
• Started training 2 Youth Employment volunteers on shelving, etc. in the Children’s Dept. 
• All Youth staff attended the Bed Bug Training at Central on June 16 



 
Teen Services report, submitted by Doris Jean Metzger: 

• organizing a small teen flash mob @ the mall to promote Teen Summer Reading 
• created the first Teen-specific summer reading program on the Evanced software & 

exported it to the branches 
• attended STLS webinar on creating a Fantasy Con @ your library  
• Visited Southside High School & promoted West Elmira & Central Teen Summer Reading 

programs during the lunch period. 
• Created and distributed a CCLD Teen summer reading prezi to Chemung County middle 

& high school librarians.  
• Partnered with Jennie Lewis (virtual services librarian) to create CCLD Teen Tumblr page.  
• met with BOCES coordinator to discuss possibility of joining forces with CCLD to help 

support reading/literacy among Elmira City School District teens…a grant is in the works 
to help fund this project 

Information Technology Department - Deb Brimmer 

From Jason Mendoza (CCC Work Study)  
Training plan progress: 
 
I've made a master "Things you should never see happen" list to be distributed to all 
staff; no matter who is walking by they can easily identify if something that should not 
be happening is happening. 
 
I'm also nearly done with a "Project Proposal Form". This will allow us to schedule 
medium and larger projects around staff schedules as much as possible and better staff 
the area depending on what the need is. There are likely going to be many projects 
proposed that don't need a specific expert and identifying those projects will allow 
anyone to be staffed in the space as long as they are familiar with the "Things you 
should never see happen" list. 
 
There will be a staff spec computer in the Tinker Lab for use during times of non-
engaged supervision. 
 
The surveys are trickling in and those who are wanting to participate will be organized 
into tentative training groups based on interest and ability. The groups will be run by 
Chris and we'll work with her to see what scheduling all this will look like.    
 
Hopefully this will minimize the scheduling/training burden and streamline the process a 
bit. 
 
In other news: 
 



Materials are arriving and the Tinker Lab is starting to come together. 
 
Some local artists have been contacted and asked if they would donate artwork 
appropriate for the space. 
 
What was they "move-in" date for the quiet room?  
 
General progress is happening 
 
Capital gains.  
 
 
 

Branches 
 
 
 
Summary of Activities--Owen Frank 

June 14 - July 11, 2014 
 
June 14th--Conducted Ereader and Central Branch Auditorium training for new Central Library 
Staff members 

June 16th--Attended workshop about Bed Bugs 

June 16th--Branch visit Van Etten Library 

June 17th--Branch visit Horseheads 

June 17th--Branch visit Bookmobile stop at Bethany Lutheran 

June 18th--presented our NYS Public Library Construction grant request for 98,000 to the STLS 
board  

June 20th--Granted permission from STLS to apply for $92,322 for 2015-16 NYS Library 
Construction funds to replace the Central Branch's 35 year old boiler and renovate the Central 
Library's 1st floor Restrooms. 

June 23--Began the online CCLD application to the New York State Library for NYS Library 
Construction funds. Project Number: 0386 -15 -5716, preliminary award notification occurs in 
the Fall of the year. Assuming the 2015-16 NYS budget passes on time, the funds should be 



transferred to the district in June of 2015. The table below details the anticipated distribution 
of the grant funds and documents the CCLD share of the cost. 

2015 NYS Library Construction Grant 
Project 0386 -15 -5716 Totals NYS Grant CCLD Match 
Boiler Replacement $54,200  $38,085  $16,115  
1st Floor Womens Restroom $40,700  $28,599  $12,101  
1st Floor Mens Restroom $36,500  $25,648  $10,852  
Total $131,400  $92,332  $39,068  

 

June 26--Branch visit Big Flats 

June 27--Branch visit West Elmira 

July 1--Branch visit Horseheads 

July 3 -- Completed NYS Public Library Construction Fund for 2015 Project. 

  



 

Big Flats 
June 16th--Glenice attend Bed Bug training, met with book seller 
June 30th--Glenice participated in Horseheads SRC kickoff event 
July 1st--Glenice participated in West Elmira and Big Flats SRC kickoff events 
July 3rd--Becky participated in Central Branch Kick off event 
July 8th--Hosting puppet show for SRC program. 
July 11th--Screening of ET 

Horseheads 
~ Pam had the Seed Lending Library Kickoff event 
~ Pam hosted bee keeping event 
~ Michelle had a Kid's Craft celebrating Eric Carle's birthday 
~ Michelle had all ages summer story time 
~ Staff had our SRC Kickoff with assorted science experiments 

West Elmira 
 

--Met with Youth Bureau and hired a teen worker scheduled to work 20-22 hours per week July 
7 - August 15. 

--Lynda & Amanda participated in SRC kickoff events at Horseheads, Big Flats, and Central 
Branch 

--Lego movie screening June 18th  

 

Board Report June- July  Central Youth Dept. Activities 
submitted by Janet Ackerman 



Total %-age Total %-age Total %-age Total
Adult Non-Fiction 4,033 7.98% 3,652 7.80% 3,851 7.64% 3,881
Adult Fiction 9,134 18.08% 8,393 17.93% 8,277 16.42% 8,805
Juv NF 2,260 4.47% 2,056 4.39% 2,418 4.80% 2,540
Juv Fic 9,621 19.04% 9,489 20.27% 10,952 21.73% 10,838
AV 16,306 32.27% 14,819 31.66% 15,250 30.26% 16,260
Periodicals 467 0.92% 383 0.82% 460 0.91% 325
Other 415 0.82% 449 0.96% 499 0.99% 457
Public Pcs 4,182 8.28% 3,977 8.50% 4,462 8.85% 3,429
Wireless 2,375 4.70% 2,071 4.42% 2,566 5.09% 2,749
Down Audio 356 0.70% 351 0.75% 366 0.73% 439
Down Ebooks 1,366 2.70% 1,160 2.48% 1,285 2.55% 1,102
Down Music 5 0.01% 1 0.00% 5 0.01% 0
Down Video 3 0.01% 3 0.01% 2 0.00% 15

Total 50,523 46,804 50,393 50,840

Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 1-A



%-age Total %-age Total %-age Total %-age Total
7.63% 3,537 7.35% 3,252 7.10% 22,206 7.59% 48952

17.32% 8,439 17.54% 8,514 18.58% 51,562 17.63% 110498
5.00% 2,292 4.76% 1,546 3.37% 13,112 4.48% 24473

21.32% 10,313 21.43% 9,578 20.90% 60,791 20.78% 126150
31.98% 14,630 30.40% 14,308 31.22% 91,573 31.31% 178525

0.64% 292 0.61% 292 0.64% 2,219 0.76% 4677
0.90% 301 0.63% 285 0.62% 2,406 0.82% 6445
6.74% 3,982 8.27% 3,741 8.16% 23,773 8.13% 49524
5.41% 2,720 5.65% 2,731 5.96% 15,212 5.20% 21323
0.86% 394 0.82% 376 0.82% 2,282 0.78% 4240
2.17% 1,150 2.39% 1,184 2.58% 7,247 2.48% 13741
0.00% 3 0.01% 0 0.00% 14 0.00% 22
0.03% 70 0.15% 27 0.06% 120 0.04% 37

48,123 45,834 292,517 49.70% 588,607

May-14 2014Apr 20Jun-14



%-age Total %-age
8.32% 53,076 9.03%

18.77% 117,901 20.06%
4.16% 28,385 4.83%

21.43% 130,819 22.26%
30.33% 181,376 30.86%

0.79% 5,923 1.01%
1.09% 4,194 0.71%
8.41% 51,049 8.69%
3.62% 0 0.00%
0.72% 3,801 0.65%
2.33% 11,203 1.91%
0.00% 19 0.00%
0.01% 20 0.00%

587,766

201213


	Agenda+2014-7
	Document+2014-36
	Document+2014-37
	Document+2014-38
	Document+2014-39
	Document+2014-40
	Document+2014-41
	CCLD+Whistleblower+Policy.revised
	Office+of+the+Director+July
	Adult
	Teen
	Children%27s
	Personnel+Actions+July+2014
	CCLD+Board+Report+14+June+to+11+July
	Branches
	June 14 - July 11, 2014
	Big Flats
	Horseheads
	West Elmira

	Circ+by+month+July
	Sheet1


